
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, MARCH 21, 2016 - 6:30 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

 
A g e n d a 

 1. Meeting called to order by Mayor Connors. 
 
 2. Roll Call. 
 
 3. Approve Minutes of February 15, 2016 Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 

  
 4.  Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 

hearing items.  Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. 
 
 5. Acknowledgment of Correspondence. - None 
 
 6.  Downtown Design Review. 

A. Application by Nancy Gissendaner & Kim Davidson for Queen Bee Artisan Market, 755 Main Street - 
Lower, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 for a new exterior sign and awning on the storefront at Tax Key No. ZOP 
00269. 
 
B. Application by Lake Geneva Party Rental, 706 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 for a new 
exterior sign on the storefront at Tax Key No. ZOP 00259. 

 
7. Public Hearing and Recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Milliette Family LP, 493 Wrigley 

Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to install an accessory structure (Pier) closer to the lake shore than the primary 
structure, within Lakeshore Overlay Zoning District located at 493 Wrigley Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, Tax Key 
No. ZOP 00369. 
 

8. Review and Recommendation on an Application for Land Division Review for a Certified Survey Map to combine 
two parcels submitted by Jeffrey Kimps, agent for Carrie Kielty Trust, P.O. Box 322, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for 
land located at 411 Center Street, Tax Key Nos. ZOP 00127 & ZXRR 00005. 

 
9. Review and Recommendation on an Application for Land Division Review for a Certified Survey Map to clarify and 

correct the overlapping legal descriptions submitted by David & Cheryl Hawkins, 1205 W. Main Street and Barbara 
Lucksinger, 222 Maxwell Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, Tax Key Nos. ZOP 00209 and ZOP 00211. 

 
10. Review and Recommendation on an Application for Land Division Review for a Removal of Restriction submitted by 

Salvatore & Donna DeSimone, 184 South Street, Elmhurst, IL 60126, for land located in the Town of Linn Extra-
territorial Jurisdiction Boundary, at N1769 Wildwood Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, Tax Key Nos. ITE 00034A. 

 
11. Review and Recommendation on an Application for Land Division Review for a Certified Survey Map submitted by 

Lake Geneva Development Corp., c/o Richard W. Torhorst, P.O. Box 1300, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 for land located 
at Tax Key Nos. ZOP 00154 & ZOP 00155. 

 
12. Public Hearing and recommendation on a Planned Development (PD), Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) submitted 

by Richard W. Torhorst, P.O. Box 1300, Lake Geneva, WI for the Lake Geneva Development Corp., on behalf of 
Paul and Allison Page at 726 Wisconsin Street, current Tax Key No. ZOP 000154. 

 
13. Public Hearing and recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Paul Lauterbach, 914 Bennett Ct. 

Walworth, WI 53184 on behalf of Lake Geneva Tennis Club, to operate and Indoor Tennis Club (Physical Activity 
Studio) in the Planned Business Park (PBP) zoning district in a proposed building on Veterans Parkway Tax Key No’s 
ZLGBP 200029. 

 
 

 



14. Public Hearing and recommendation on a General Development Plan (GDP) Application filed by Paul Lauterbach, 
914 Bennett Ct. Walworth, WI 53184 on behalf of Lake Geneva Tennis Club, for a new commercial building (Tennis 
Club)in the Planned Business Park (PBP) zoning district in a proposed building on Veterans Parkway Tax Key No’s 
ZLGBP 200029. 

 
15. Adjournment 

 
 

QUORUM OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS MAY BE PRESENT 
Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance in order to participate in this meeting, should be made to the City Clerk's office, in order for appropriate accommodations. 

 Posted 3/18/16 



Page 1 of 3 
Plan Commission Mtg Minutes 2-15-16 

 
 

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2016 - 6:30 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 

 
MINUTES 

 1. Meeting called to order by Mayor Connors at 6:30 pm. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 Present:  Al Kupsik, Doug Skates, Cindy Flower, Tyler Frederick 
 Also Present:  Planner Mike Slavney, Atty. Dan Draper, Mayor Connors, Administrator Oborn, 
    Inspector Robers and Assistant Gregoles 
 Not Present:  John Gibbs, Sarah Adams 
 
 3. Approve Minutes of December 21, 2015 Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 
  
 
 Kupsik/Skates moved to approve the minutes of December 21, 2015 Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 

MOTION #1 

 The motion carried unanimously. 
  

 4.  Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public hearing 
items.  Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. - None 

 
 5. Acknowledgment of Correspondence. - None 
 
 6.  Downtown Design Review. 
 

A. Application by Elizabeth Chappell for Americuts, 511 Broad Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 for a new exterior menu board 
sign on the storefront at Tax Key No. ZOP 00029. 

 
  
  Inspector Robers gave an overview of the application details and there was a brief discussion with the Commission. 

DISCUSSION 

 
  
 Kupsik/Flower moved to approve the application by Elizabeth Chappell for Americuts, 511 Broad Street, Lake 

MOTION #2 

Geneva, WI 53147 for a new exterior menu board sign on the storefront at Tax Key No. ZOP 00029. 
  The motion carried unanimously. 
 

B. Application by Elizabeth Chappell for Lake Geneva Art Museum, 513 Broad Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 for a new 
exterior menu board sign on the storefront at Tax Key No. ZOP 00029. 

 
  
  Inspector Robers gave an overview of the application details and there was a brief discussion with the Commission. 

DISCUSSION 

 
  

Kupsik/Flower  moved to approve the application by Elizabeth Chappell for Lake Geneva Art Museum, 513 Broad Street, 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 for a new exterior menu board sign on the storefront at Tax Key No. ZOP 00029. 

MOTION #3 

 The motion carried unanimously. 
  



Page 2 of 3 
Plan Commission Mtg Minutes 2-15-16 

 
 

 
7. Review and Recommendation on an Application for Site Plan Review for landscape alteration filled by Dan Winkler, City of 

Lake Geneva, 626 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 for the front lawn and fountain area at the Riviera, 812 Wrigley 
Drive. 
 

Dan Winkler/City of Lake Geneva  and Jim Cruthers/Grand Geneva  gave an overview of the application details and there was a 
brief discussion with the Commission.  For the record the Mayor stated that he is a member of the Beautification Committee but 
the city attorney Dan Draper does not see this as a conflict of interest for voting purposes. 

DISCUSSION 

 

Kupsik/ Frederick moved to approve the application for Site Plan Review for landscape alteration filled by Dan Winkler, City of 
Lake Geneva, 626 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 for the front lawn and fountain area at the Riviera, 812 Wrigley Drive, 
and to include any staff recommendations. The motion carried unanimously. 

MOTION #4 

 
8. Public Hearing and recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Liquid Capital dba Melges Car Wash, 1100 S 

Edwards Blvd., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the installation of an electronic message center on a freestanding monument sign 
located at 1100 S Edwards Blvd., Tax Key No. ZA456600003. 
 

Hans Melges owner and applicant gave an overview of the application details and there was a brief discussion with the 
Commission.  The new sign will have the ability to be tied to the city for bad weather alerts or police amber alerts.  Melges 
suggested that this should be a consideration for any LED lighted signs that go up in the city as it is a nice safety feature. 

DISCUSSION 

 
PUBLIC SPEAKERS – 
 

None 

Kupsik/Mayor Connors moved to close the public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 
MOTION #5 

 

Kupsik/ Mayor Connors moved to approve the recommendation on a Conditional Use Application filed by Liquid Capital dba 
Melges Car Wash, 1100 S Edwards Blvd., Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the installation of an electronic message center on a 
freestanding monument sign located at 1100 S Edwards Blvd., Tax Key No. ZA456600003 and to include any finding of facts and  
staff recommendations. The motion carried unanimously. 

MOTION #6 

 
9. Review and Recommendation on an Application for Land Division Review for a Certified Survey Map submitted by GPC Real 

Estate LLC, PO Box 400, Libertyville, IL 60048 for land located Wells Street and North Bloomfield Road, Lake Geneva, WI 
53147, Tax Key Nos. ZGM 00001 thru ZGM 00109. 
 

Inspector Robers gave an overview of the application details and there was a brief discussion with the Commission. 
DISCUSSION 

 

Kupsik/Skates moved to approve recommendation on the application for Land Division Review for a Certified Survey Map 
submitted by GPC Real Estate LLC, PO Box 400, Libertyville, IL 60048 for land located Wells Street and North Bloomfield Road, 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147, Tax Key Nos. ZGM 00001 thru ZGM 00109, to include all staff recommendations.  

MOTION #7 

The motion carried unanimously. 
  



Page 3 of 3 
Plan Commission Mtg Minutes 2-15-16 

 
 

 
10. Public Hearing and recommendation on a Planned Development (PD) for a new residential Final Plat and onsite club 

house/amenity center for Symphony Bay, filed by Taylor Morrison of Illinois, Inc., 1834 Walden Office Square, Suite 300, 
Schaumburg, Illinois 60173 for property located South of Townline Road, North of Bloomfield Road and East of Edwards Blvd. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147, formally known as Southland Farms Subdivision, Tax Key No’s to be assigned. 
 

Rick Zirk of Taylor Morrison gave an overview of the application details, including a power point slide show and there was a 
discussion with the Commission to clarify several points of interest and concern. City Planner Slavney provided a letter dated 
February 15, 2016 with 8 items for review and compliance by the applicant regarding the zoning flexibility for the single family 
lots in Symphony Bay.  Specifying that the approval of those items of zoning flexibility for the Duplex lots should wait until 
specific floor plans and the resulting required setbacks are submitted for City approval.  Several items were discussed as 
conditional approvals for a final motion including but not limited to garage setbacks, further staff review of the recreation 
center and engineering review of steep drainage ditch slopes, etc. 

DISCUSSION 

 

O’Neill voiced his density concerns with regards to the lots being too small.  
PUBLIC SPEAKER #1 –Terri O’Neill, 954 George Street, LG 

 

Shroeder voiced his concerns of what the existing Towline Road area will look like after this development goes in. 
PUBLIC SPEAKER #2 –? Shroeder, 1151 Townline Rd - Unit 101, LG 

Shroeder also questioned where the construction entrances would be? (Reply – Bloomfield Rd) 
In addition he brought up concerns regarding the dangers at the intersections at Townline Road and the need for a traffic light. 

 

Kupsik/Skates moved to close the public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 
MOTION #8 

 

Kupsik/Skates moved to approve recommendation on a Planned Development (PD) for a new residential Final Plat and onsite 
club house/amenity center for Symphony Bay, filed by Taylor Morrison of Illinois, Inc., 1834 Walden Office Square, Suite 300, 
Schaumburg, Illinois 60173 for property located South of Townline Road, North of Bloomfield Road and East of Edwards Blvd. 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147, formally known as Southland Farms Subdivision, Tax Key No’s to be assigned, including  
recommendations contained in letters from Nielson Madsen & Barber S.C. dated February 10, 2016, Kapur & Associates dated 
February 12, 2016 and Vanderwalle & Associates dated February 15, 2016, the condition that the Final Building Plans for the 
Club House / Amenity Center and Duplex Units be approved by the Plan Commission at a future meeting, the Subdivision 
entrance signs be set back from the property line a distance equal to the height of the sign,  a note be added to the Plat stating 
that garages will be equal or set back from the building/porch front plane, and final approval from Nielson Madsen & Barber S.C. 
for the grading and storm water management plans. (Letters mentioned in this motion are attached to these minutes.) 

MOTION #9 

 
Amendment by Mayor Connors/Flower to have both sets of engineering firms review the slope of the East West running 
drainage ditches and to limit all construction traffic to the entrance on Bloomfield Rd. The amendment carried unanimously. 
 
The original motion incorporating the above amendment carried unanimously 5/0 
 

11. Adjournment 
 

Skates/Flower moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:10 pm.  The motion carried unanimously. 
MOTION #11 

 
/s/Jackie Gregoles, B&Z Administrative Assistant 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION 



  

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

 
 

Meeting Date:  February 16, 2016  
 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:      Request: 
Gisssendaner / Davidson for Queen Bee               Exterior Sign and Awnings     
755 Main Street -Lower                  Tax Key No. ZOP 00269      
Lake Geneva, WI 53147  
 

                                         

The applicants propose to add a sign and update the awning at their business. The design of the sign and awning 
meet the Downtown Design Overlay District requirements.   

Description: 

 
Staff Recommendation:
The new Sign and Awning meet all specifications for the Downtown district and Sign Ordinance. Staff’s 
recommendation is that the both be approved as presented with any Commission amendments. 

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:      Request: 
Lake Geneva Party Rental          Exterior Menu Board Sign     
706 Geneva Street                  Tax Key No. ZOP 00259      
Lake Geneva, WI 53147  
 

                                         

The applicant proposes a sign at the business. The design of the new sign meets the Downtown Design Overlay 
District requirements.   

Description: 

 
Staff Recommendation:
The new Sign meets all specifications for the Downtown district and Sign Ordinance. Staff’s recommendation is that 
the sign be approved as presented with any Commission amendments. 

    

 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:      Request: 
Milliette Family LP                             Conditional Use approval to install an accessory structure  
493 Wrigley Drive                             (Pier) closer to the lake than the primary structure in the   
Lake Geneva, WI 53147                            Lakeshore Overlay Zoning District at 493 Wrigley Drive
 

.  

Description:
 

   The applicant would like to remove and reconstruct a pier for lake access. 

Staff Recommendation:    Staff has no objection to the proposed pier which is currently in for approval from the 
Wisconsin DNR. Proof of approval to be supplied before any construction begins. The applicant has worked with 

Agenda Item #7 

Agenda Item #6A 

Agenda Item #6B 



  
staff on a compromise to the Riparian rights of the neighbor to the South (City of Lake Geneva) to allow the pier to 
be closer than the 12.5 feet required in the City Ordinance to maintain the clearance on the North side for that 
property owner. 
 

As part of the consideration of a requested Conditional Use Permit, the Plan Commission needs to make findings 
per the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, and then make a recommendation to the city Council. 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate fact finding 

would be: 
 

1. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and 
standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance 
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
2. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 

policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, 
or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
3. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan does not 

result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or 
other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may 
in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this Chapter, the 
Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide 
development. 

 
4. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land 

use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 
 

5. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not impose an 
undue burden on any of improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public agencies serving 
the subject property. 

 
6. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse impacts of the 

proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal and any requirements 
recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact finding 

would be: 
 

1. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and 
standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance 
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
2. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 

policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, 
or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
3. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan does result 

in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or 
other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may 
in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this Chapter, the 



  
Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide 
development. 

 
4. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, 

and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 
 

5. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not impose an 
undue burden on any of improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public agencies serving 
the subject property. 
 

6. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential adverse impacts 
of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal and any 
requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:      Request: 
Jeffrey Kimps agent for Carrie Kielty Trust  Certified Survey Map approval for land located in    
P.O. Box 322          the City of Lake Geneva at 411 Center Street     
Lake Geneva, WI 53147    
 

Tax Key No.ZOP 00127 & ZXRR 00211.  

Description:
Application for Land Division Review for a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to combine the parcels into one parcel. 

   

 
Staff Recommendation:
Staff has no objection to a recommendation for approval and the City Engineer has reviewed and has no objections 
to proceeding. The combination of the lots into one lot will result in the house meeting current setbacks. 

   

 
 
 

 
 
Applicant:      Request: 
David & Cheryl Hawkins / Barbara Lucksinger  Certified Survey Map approval for land located in    
1205 W Main St / 222 Maxwell Street       the City of Lake Geneva at 1205 W Main Street and   
Lake Geneva, WI 53147    
 

222 Maxwell Street, Tax Key No’s ZOP 00209 & 00211. 

Description:
Application for Land Division Review for a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to clarify and correct overlapping legal 
descriptions for the two parcels involved. 

   

 
Staff Recommendation:
Staff has no objection to a recommendation for approval and the City Engineer has reviewed and has no objections 
to proceeding. This CSM will correct the overlapping of legal descriptions and will not adversely affect the 
conforming status of the properties. 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item #8 

Agenda Item #9 



  
 
 
 
Applicant:      Request: 
Salvatore & Donna DeSimone    Removal of Restrictions for land located in the Town of     
184 South Street         Linn, in the City’s Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction Boundary   
Elmhurst, IL 60126     
 

at N1769 Wildwood Drive, Tax Key No. ITE 00034A. 

Description:
Application for Land Division Review for a Removal of Restrictions required by Walworth County to allow the 
construction of  an addition onto the home on the parcel. 

   

 
Staff Recommendation:
Staff has no objection to a recommendation for approval as this is basically a housekeeping issue due to the parcel 
being located in our Extra- territorial Jurisdiction Boundary. 

   

 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:      Request: 
Lake Geneva Development Corp.   Certified Survey Map approval for land located in    
c/o Richard W Torhorst         the City of Lake Geneva at 323 Broad Street and   
P.O. Box 1300      
 

726 Wisconsin Street Tax Key No’s ZOP 00155 & 00154. 

Description:
Application for Land Division Review for a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to adjust the lot-lines for the two parcels. 

   

 
Staff Recommendation:
Staff has no objection to a recommendation for approval and the City Engineer has reviewed and has no objections 
to proceeding. This CSM will make the parcel on Broad Street larger and facilitate development on the old Traver 
Hotel site. 

   

 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:      Request: 
Lake Geneva Development Corp.   Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) for a Planned  
c/o Richard W Torhorst         Development (PD) to set the setbacks and current uses for     
P.O. Box 1300      the property at 726 Wisconsin Street, Tax Key No’s  
Lake Geneva, WI 53147    
 

ZOP00154. 

Description:
PIP to set setbacks and uses for an existing building that currently do not meet the 1997 Zoning Code for the 
General Business Zoning District.  

   

 
Staff Recommendation:
Staff has no problem with granting the Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) for the Planned Development (PD) as all 
of the uses are currently “grandfathered” and this procedure will allow them to be consistent with the current Zoning  
Code. 

   

 

As part of the consideration of a requested Conditional Use Permit, the Plan Commission needs to make findings 
per the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, and then make a recommendation to the city Council. 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Agenda Item #12 

Agenda Item #11 

Agenda Item #10 



  
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be: 
 

1. In general, the proposed Planned Development is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
2. Specific to this site, the proposed Planned Development is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other 
plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
3. The proposed Planned Development in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 

does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or 
rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now 
exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of 
this Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development. 

 
4. The proposed Planned Development maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 

intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 
 

5. The proposed Planned Development is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

 
6. The potential public benefits of the proposed Planned Development outweigh all potential adverse 

impacts of the proposed Planned Development after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact finding 

would be: 
 

1. In general, the proposed Planned Development is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
2. Specific to this site, the proposed Planned Development is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other 
plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
3. The proposed Planned Development in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 

does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or 
rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now 
exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of 
this Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development. 

 
4. The proposed Planned Development does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 

intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 
 



  
5. The proposed Planned Development is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 

impose an undue burden on any of improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

 
6. The potential public benefits of the proposed Planned Development do not outweigh all potential 

adverse impacts of the proposed Planned Development after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:       Request: 
Paul Lauterbach on behalf of Lake Geneva Tennis Club    Conditional Use to operate an Indoor Tennis Club 
914 Bennett Court                   (Physical Activity Studio) in the Planned Business 
Walworth, WI 53184 Park on Veterans Parkway , Tax Key No.      

ZLGBP 200029. 
 

               

Description:
The applicant proposes to operate an indoor tennis club which requires a Conditional Use Permit for a Physical 
Activity Studio at a proposed site in the Planned Business Park (PBP). 

   

 
Staff Recommendation:
The building and site will require State of Wisconsin building and site approval for all trades and site plans must be 
reviewed by the City’s engineer for compliance. Building will also require City of Lake Geneva Zoning approval for 
a Planned Development. This was approved in 2014 but expired while financing was obtained. 

   

 

As part of the consideration of a requested Conditional Use Permit, the Plan Commission needs to make findings 
per the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, and then make a recommendation to the city Council. 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be: 
 

1. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and 
standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or 
ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
2. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 

policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
3. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan does 

not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or 
rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now 
exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of 
this Chapter, the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development. 

 
4. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and 

land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 
 

Agenda Item #13 



  
5. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 

impose an undue burden on any of improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

 
6. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse impacts of 

the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal and any 
requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact finding 

would be: 
 

1. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies 
and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or 
ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
2. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other 
plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
3. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan does 

result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, 
or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as 
they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this Chapter, 
the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide 
development. 

 
4. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 

intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 
 

5. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

 
6. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential adverse 

impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal and 
any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:       Request: 
Paul Lauterbach on behalf of Lake Geneva Tennis Club    Conditional Use to operate an Indoor Tennis Club 
914 Bennett Court                   (Physical Activity Studio) in the Planned Business 
Walworth, WI 53184 Park on Veterans Parkway , Tax Key No.      

ZLGBP 200029. 
 

               

Description:
The applicant proposes to operate an indoor tennis club which requires a Planned Development Process. The 
General Development Plan (GDP) is the first step of this process at a proposed site in the Planned Business Park 
(PBP). 

   

 

Agenda Item #14 



  
 
Staff Recommendation:
The building and site will require State of Wisconsin building and site approval for all trades and site plans must be 
reviewed by the City’s engineer for compliance. Staff recommends approval of the General Development Plan with 
any Plan Commission Requirements. Final Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) approval will be required to proceed 
with construction. 

   

 

As part of the consideration of a requested Conditional Use Permit, the Plan Commission needs to make findings 
per the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, and then make a recommendation to the city Council. 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate fact finding 
would be: 
 

1. In general, the proposed Planned Development is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies 
and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or 
ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
2. Specific to this site, the proposed Planned Development is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 

policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, 
or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
3. The proposed Planned Development in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan does 

not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or 
other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may 
in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this Chapter, the 
Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide 
development. 

 
4. The proposed Planned Development maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, 

and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 
 

5. The proposed Planned Development is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

 
6. The potential public benefits of the proposed Planned Development outweigh all potential adverse impacts 

of the proposed Planned Development after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal and any 
requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 
 
 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate fact finding 
would be: 
 

1. In general, the proposed Planned Development is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, program, 
or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 
2. Specific to this site, the proposed Planned Development is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

 



  
3. The proposed Planned Development in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan does 

result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or 
other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may 
in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this Chapter, the 
Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide 
development. 

 
4. The proposed Planned Development does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 

intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 
 

5. The proposed Planned Development is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

 
6. The potential public benefits of the proposed Planned Development do not outweigh all potential adverse 

impacts of the proposed Planned Development after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal and 
any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
 
 
 
Staff may provide additional comment on the above items and will comment on remaining agenda items at the 
meeting. 
 
 
          Kenneth Robers   
                                         Zoning Administrator   
























































































































































	March 21, 2016 Agenda
	March 21, 2016 Agenda
	UA g e n d a

	February 15, 2016 Minutes - revised per Atty Draper
	UMINUTES

	PLAN.March2016.asd

	Agenda Item # 6 - Downtown Design - Two Items
	Agenda Item # 6a - 755 Main St Lower
	Agenda Item # 6b - 706 Geneva St

	Agenda Item # 7 - Milliette Family Pier
	Agenda Item # 8 - Land Division Rvw - 411 Center St
	Agenda Item # 9 - Land Division Rvw - Clarify Legal Descrp Hawkins & Lucksinger
	Agenda Item # 10 - Land Division Rvw - ITE 00034A Town of Linn
	Agenda Item # 11 - Land Division Rvw - LG Dev Corp
	Agenda Item # 12 - PD & PIP LG Development Corp
	Agenda Item # 13 - Cond Use LG Tennis Club
	Agenda Item # 13 - Cond Use LG Tennis Club
	Agenda Item # 13b - Cond Use LG Tennis Club
	Agenda Item # 13c - Cond Use LG Tennis Club

	Agenda Item # 14 - GDP for LG Tennis Club
	Agenda Item # 14 - GDP for LG Tennis Club
	Agenda Item # 14b - GDP for LG Tennis Club


